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TO THE MEMRERS OF PAUL MERC}IANTS FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Raport on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PAUL MERCHANTS FINANCE

PRMTE LIMITED ("the Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,2024,

the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of

Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended, and notes to financial

statements including a summary oF significant accounting policies and other explanatory

inilrmation (hereinafter referred to as the " Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid finarcial statements give the intormation required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the

"Act") in the manner sc required and give a true and fair view in c.rnformity with the Indian

Accounting St;i:,.:rids prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the ComPanies (Indian

Accounting Standards) Rules, 20i5, as amended, ("lnd AS") and other accounting principles

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at l'1a rch 3L, 2024, the profit

and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flo'r,s for the year enCed on that

date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our a,rdit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
.,ectic'r 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). Our responsibilities under those Standards

are tu|ther described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audlt ot the Financial Results section

ot our reDort. We are indeoencient of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued

b), the Institute oi'Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethicil requii'cn,ents that are

relevant to our audit of the f'nancial results under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and

the Rules thereunjer, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with

these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
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b sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our opinion is not modified in

respect of this matter.

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of

the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in

equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally

accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of

the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial results that give a true and fair view

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial results, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the

Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors

either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but

to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting

process.

Auditor's Responsibilaties for the Audit of the Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial results as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errorr and to issue an auditor's

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial results.
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basufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, Our opinion is not modified in

respect of this matter.

$?nagement's Responsibility for the Financial Results

n.
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of

the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in

equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally

accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of

the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in

eccordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for

rrreventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were

oDerating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Rnancial results that give a true and fair view

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

i-he Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting

grocess.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial results as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial results.

In preparing the financial results, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the

Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors

either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but

to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Results
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial results, whether

due to fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, fotgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the company's internal control. Under section 143(3)(i)

of the Act we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has

adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the

operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors,

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,

we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the

financial results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial results, including

the disclosures, and whether the financial results represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that
individually or in aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced, We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in

As part of an audit in accordance with SAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial

statements.

i^./e communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

i'elationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance we determine those matters

that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financlal statements of the current

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when in extremely rare

circumstances we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because

the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

:nterest benefits of such communication.

a) During the year, a contingent liability of Rs.30.5 Lakhs, disclosed in audited financials for

FY 2022-23 of the company has been paid in full by the said subsidiary upon receipt of

final penal order of the RBI under Para 9.1(ii)(d) of the Master Directions on PPIS dated

Aug 27,2021, The same is disclosed as an extraordinary item in the consolidated financial

results of the company. Our conclusion on the financial results is not modified in respect

of the above matter.

Other Matters
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), as amended,

issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,

we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of

the Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),

the statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report

are in agreement with the books of accounts.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015. Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on March

31, 2024 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

"Annexure 8".

s' With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' report in accordance with
section 197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid/provided by the Company to its directors

c

ll

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books and proper returns

adequate for the purpose of our audit have been received from the branches not visited by

us.



during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to

the AcU

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

t. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used

accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of

recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year

for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of

our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered

with.

The management has represented that. to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities ("Intermed ia ries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the
company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficia ries;

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best

of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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vI.

vIt.

Date: 14.05.2024
Place: Chandigarh

Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (iv) and (v) above contain any material
mis-statement.

Based on the representations received by us and audit procedures conducted by us,
the company has paid dividend during the year and the same is in compliance of
Section 123 of Companies Act, 2013.

(ROHIT GOEL)
PARTNER

M, No. 091756
UDIN: 240917568KHIWS6919

For RATMOEL & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No. - 0111O6N



Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditors' Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the headlng'Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement'

of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March

31,2024i

(a) (A) According to the explanations and representations made to

management, the Company has maintained proper records showing full

including quantitative details and situation of Property Plant and Equipments.

us by the

pa rt ic u la rs,

(B) According to the explanations and representations made to us by the

management, the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of

Intangible Assets

(b) The Property Plant and Equipments have been physically verified by the

management in a phased manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three

years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Property Plant

and Equipments and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed

asset has been physically verified by the management during the year and no material

discrepancies between the books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed

by the management, as represented to us.

(c) According to information and explanatlons given to us, the company does not own any

immovable properties as such reporting with regards to conveyance deeds is not applicable

in its case,

(d) According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not revalued

its Property Plant and Equipments or Intangible Assets or both during the year.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been

initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under Benami

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
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(a) In respect of its inventories, since the company is a Non-Banking Financial Company,

it does not carry any types of inventory. Hence, this clause is not applicable. Securities in

the shape of gold ornaments are held by the company however the same do not form part

of inventories. As perthe management, the same have been physically verined on quarterly

basis.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore

rupees during the year from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of

current assets. Basis the information and explanation provided to us and basis our audit

procedures including test check procedures, we have not come across any material

difference between the information submitted in the quarterly returns / statements filed

by the company with such banks and financial institutions when compared with the books

of accounts and other relevant information provided by the Company.

(b) Considering that the Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company, the investments

made, guarantees given and security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of

loans are not prima facie prejudicial to the Company's interest.

(c) The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company ('NBFC'), registered under

provisions of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and rules made thereunder and is

regulated by various regulations, circulars and norms issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

In respect of loans granted by the Company, we report that the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments/receipts of
principal and Interest are regular except relating to Stage-3 or Credit impaired Loan assets

(or Non Performing Assets as per applicable RBI Norms) as disclosed in the financial

statements and reproduced below in sub para (d).

ii.

iii. (a) As the company is in principal business of extending loans, clause 3(iii) (a) of the order

is not applicable to the company hence not commented upon,



(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company by the Company, there is no overdue

amount for more than ninety days as at the Balance Sheet date except for the following

cases as on March 37, 2O24i

Gold Loan and Other others

No, of
accounts

Loan Principal Amount

overdue

Interest Amount

Overdue*

Total

overdue

7,54,73,637 8,73,66,t37

*The abovementioned interest overdue has been derecognized as income as well as not

included in carrying value of loan assets as per applicable RBI norms and accounting

policies of the company.

(e) The Company is primarily engaged in the lending business and accordingly, the

reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) Basis the information and explanations provided to us by the management, the

Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans which are repayable

on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment and accordingly, the

reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,

2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and securities as applicable.

As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the
central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of the
activities carried on by the company.

0--
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1082 7,r8,92,500

Based on audit procedures performed by us and explanations received by us, company has

issued Non Convertible debentures to deposit holders as per applicable guidelines of the

Reserve Bank of India. The provisions of section 73 to 76 of Companies Act 2013 however

do not apply to the company as it is a Non Banking Finance Company. However, as

represented to us by the management, it has complied with applicable guidelines of the

RBI while issuing the NCDS. Further, the company has explained that no order involving it
has been passed by the NCLT, CLB or RBI or any other court or any other tribunal.
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ix.

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the books of accounts, and records, the Company has been generally

regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State

Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value

added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According

to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect

of the above were in arrears as at March 3L, 2024 for a period of more than six months

from the date on when they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and

those charged with governance, there are no statutory dues which have not been paid on

account of a dispute except for demand of Rs 97090/- raised vide order u/s 143(3) of the

Income Tax Act 1961 for Financial Yeat 2021-22. As per the documents examined by us

and explanation of the management, the said demand has arisen due to an error apparent

from record and a rectification application in this regard has been preferred with the

concerned officer and company is sanguine of resolution at the earliest.

According to information and explanations provided to us, there is no transaction that is

not recorded in the books of account which has been surrendered or disclosed as income

during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,

the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks or any lender.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,

the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or

other lender.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,

the term loans of the company have been applied for the purpose it was taken for.

d) In our opinion, funds raised for short term purposes are not being utilized for long
term purposes.

e) According to information provided to us, the company does not has not have any
subsidiaries, associates orJoint ventures and as such reporting required as per the order
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regarding receipt from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of

its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures is not applicable in the present case.

f) According to information shared and explanations given to us, the company does not

has not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and as such reporting required

as per the order regarding raising of loans during the year on the pledge of securities held

in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate company.

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations

given by the management, the company not raised money by way of initial public offer or

fu rther public offer.

(b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations

given by the management, the company has raised money by private placement of Non-

convertible debentures during the year and the relevant requirements of Companies Act

2013 have been complied with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes as

specified in the offer letters issued to the debenture holders.

(a) Based on audit procedures performed and information and explanations &

representations given to us by management, no fraud by the company or on the company

by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year,

(b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations

given by the management, we report that no report uls L43(72) of Companies Act 2013

has been filed by the auditors.

(c) As per explanations provided to us by the company, no whistle blower complaints

have been received by the company during the year.

The company is not a Nidhi Company and therefore provisions of para 3(xii) of the order
are not applicable to the company.

xt.

xii.

xiil. In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
777 and 188 of companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the
Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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xiv,

xvt.

xvii.

(a) In our opinion and according to explanations and information received by us, the

company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business,

(b) The reports of the internal auditors for the financial year were obtained by us from the

management and verified on test check and sample basis as part of our audit procedures.

The findings as per such reports were considered by us as part of our audit,

In our Opinion and according to information and explanations provided to us, the company

has not entered into any non-cash transactions as specified in section 192 of the

Companies Act 2013 with directors or persons connected with them during the year. Hence

reporting requirement under Clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The company is carrying on the business of lending against gold ornaments as well as

other loans and for the said purpose company has obtained Certificate of Registration

(COR) from RBI and is registered under section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India.

Upon examination of the cash flow statement of the company, we have concluded that the

company had not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year and in the

immediately preceding financial year.

xviii, There has not been any resignation by statutory auditor during the year.

x tx, On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial

assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial

statements as well as our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, no

material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is incapable of

meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within

a period of one year from the balance sheet date, We, however, state that this is not an

assurance or guarantee as to the future viability of the Company and further state that

our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report as disclosed to us by

the management and not thereafter.

xx. As per information shared with us by the management as well as per our audit procedures,

the company has duly complied with CSR obligations and there is no unspent CSR amount

at the end of the year.
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Date:14.O5,2024
Place: Chandigarh

The company does not have any subsidiaries/joint ventures/associates and as such

reporting as per the order regarding report of auditors of companies included in

consolidated financial statements is not applicable in this case.

For RAJMOEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOU

Firm Reg, No. -

(

M. No, 091756
UDIN: 24091756BKHIWS5919



"Annexure B" to the Independent Audltor's Report of even date on the Financial
Statements of Paut Merchants Finance Private Limlted

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Paul Merchants Finance

Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 3L, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were

operating effectively as at March 31,2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control

stated in the Guidance Note on 'Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting'

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the'Guidance Note').

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of

Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance

of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting (the,'Guidance Note,,) and
the standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,

,/1
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both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established

and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial

reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

Drinciples. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies

ond procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation

of financlal statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
i'eceipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations

of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our

audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding

of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness

cxists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error.



Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial

controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial

reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For RAIMOEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Farm Reg. No. - 01l1O5N

q^_
(ROHIT GOEL)

PARTNER
M, No, 091756

UDIi{: 240917568KHIwS6919
Date: 14.05,2024
Place: Chandigarh

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including

the possibility of collusion or improper management override oF controls, material misstatements

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the

internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the

internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.



PAIJI. MERCHANTS TINANCE PSIVATE LIMITEO

Audited Ealance Sheet as at 3lst Mar 2024
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PAUI, MERCHANTS FINANCE PNIVATE LIMITEO

audited Prolit and Loss Stat€m€nt lorthe vea. end€d 31st Mar 2024
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PAUT MERCIIANTS fINANCE PRIVATE LIMITEO

CASX FLOW STATEMENI AS AT315t March 2024
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PAUL MTRCHANTS TI'IANCE PNIVATE TIMIIEO

S'TATEiIENT OF CHANGES IN EOUITY
ctN-u6592rCH2010PTC032462
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Note 1: CASH & BANK BALANCE

Pa rticulars
As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st Mar 2023

Amount (Rs. ln lakhs) Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

A. Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks in Current Accounts

Cash in Hand

Iotal (1)

B. Other Balances with Banks

i) ln Term Deposit Accounts with > 3 month

and <12 months maturity
Total (2)

7,425.17

107.93

1,533.10 806.45

3 8 2.50 285.62

3 82.50 285.62

Total (r+2) 1,915.60 t,o92.o7

(r/

NOTES ON FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

434.91

37L.54



Note 2: Trade Receivable

Particulars
As at 31st Mar 2024 Ar at 3lst Mer 2023

Amount (Rs. ln lakhs) Rs. ln lakhs)

5u nd ry Debtort 41.82 5.18
Total 41.82 5.18

Note 2 : Trade Re.eivable

,\

As at 3lst Mar 2023

Amount (Rs.ln lakhs)

a) Undi!puted Trade ReceivableeConsidered
g(Jod

b) undisputed Trade Receivables-Considered

doubtful

cl Orsputed Trade Receivables-Considered

80od

d) Oisputed Trade Receivables-Consadered

doubtful

Lers than 6 Months 1-2 Years 2-3 Yea15

More then 3

Total

5.18 5.18

Tolal 5.18 5.18

,)

A
:.{

-t't^

As at 31st Mar2024
Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

Less than 6 Months 6Months-lYear 1-2 Years 2-3 Year5
More than 3

Total

42-tl41_37

a) lJndisputed Trade Receivables-Considered
good

b) UndisputedTrade Receivables-Considered

doubtful

c) Dsputed Trade Receivables'Con5idered
good

d) DisputedTrade Receivables-Con5idered

doubtful

42.t7Total 41.31 0.80

080

\

//-\---.-z
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lc|(I) Lo.n5 @t5lde rddi.
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62.S3
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Note 4: Other Financial assets

Pa rt icu la rs
As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st Mar 2023

Amount (Rs. ln lakhs) Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

Amou nt Recoverable

Other Recovera ble

Advance from Customers/ Renewal Pending

13 04 13.04

Total 13.04 13.04

Note 5 : CLJRRENT TAX ASSETS

Pa rticu la rs
As at 31st Mat 2024 As at 31st Mar 2023

Amount (Rs. ln lakhs) Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

Advance Tax & TDS (Net of Provision for Tax)*

Tax refu nda ble

ln put Credit

36.18 272.90

0.20

702.40

Total L49.66 375.50

* ln Earlier periods, advance tax Paid and TDS deducted was shown separatly while Provision for tax was

disclosed separately under current tax liabilities. However, from Financial year 2023-24 onwards both

these figures are being netted from each other for better presentation. Previous Figures have also been

reclassified.

sFl

0---*/s
\ sEcl

ao

112.88



Note 6 Deferred Tax Liabilities /Assets (Rs. ln lakhs)

Pa rticu la rs

As at 31st Ma( 2024 As at 31st Mar 2023 Current Year

Accounting
Base

Tax Base
DrA/(Dfl-)

8a l.

Accounting
Base

Tax Base DTA/(DTL) Bal. DTA/(DTt) Prov

Fixed Assets

Payable related to direct Assignment
Bank Borrowings (Term Loans)

Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Bonus

\,093.74
66.13

25,118.25
LO2.77

87 .72

1,,307.70

25,260.34

53.85

15.54

-35.75

25.87

21.93

1,013.39

511.97
67 .71

56.63

7,096.7 4

619.7l

20.98

-27 .t2
17 .O4

t4.25

32.87

75.64
-8.54

8.82

1 .67

82.5 3 25.15 57 .37

22.A

sco q,"----



M/S PAUT MTRCHANIS TINANCT PRIVAfTTIMITIO
PAfiTTUUnS Of OtPttC|ATtON AttOWAatt AS Pt i COMPAN|IS ACr. 20r]!

Nor.7: P.op.ny, rlrnl.nd rquiom€nt

A..unulrted Oepr€clarloi

lAmou.l is rn l.lhr)

B.l.n..$.1lrnM.'2024
2023

'\7137 7123

1a 10* r9513

59 06

Compot.r & A((.sorie! 5r r5 52 51

19 51 251

M..hln.fln.('dln8 o(i.e 652

1,69S 51 r9l25 359 76

99 53 I 245 la

t,930 65

1,56413

" No revaluation ofany.lais ofasr.t is (arri.d ourdurint th. yea.

o_sco
SE 22.4

30



Note 7A - Capit.lWorl in Progress - Ageing

A$.1! lrndcr Oevelopm.nl

Prore.l5 tx...ded Audr.iarv Con

25 25 15 25

Prolecls T.mDorarily s!!pended

Pror..tt Er...d.d Budt.tary Cost

)\ 25 25.25

2t 252\.7\

Assett under Developmenr

Prqe.i! T.mporar y suspended

Proiecr3 Exc..ded gudr.tary cost
61 80

Pro,..l! I.hporairlys!sp.nd.d

Prol.ds Erc..d.d Soda.r.ry ao!t

t.90

E 0.*-

590

_]-

2-A



As at 3lst Mar 2024 As at 3lst Mar 2023

Amounr (8s. ln lalhs) Amount (fis. ln lakhs)

Prepaid Ixpenses

Se€urity and Amount Refundable
Advance to Vendor

323.94

376.63

151.93

227 _34

226.14

248.29
Iotal 8S2.49 101_76

NOtE 8: OTHIR NON TINANCIAT ASSETS

NOtE 9 : TINANCIAI tIAEII,ITIES - OTHTR PAYABI,ES

Note 9: TRADE PAYA8LE AGtING

Particulars
As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st Mar 2023

Amount (Rs. ln lakhs) Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

txpenses and other Payable

lnlerest payable on NCD

Auction Refundable

Trade Payable

Snlary Payable

3,502.33
13.41

17.55

114 99

242 40

270 2421525

5.51

11 20

198.00

Iotal 4,030.70 547.06

As at 31st Mar 2024

Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

(i)MSNIE (Undisputed)

(ri) Others (Undisputed)

{iir)DisputedDues MSMt

{rv) Oisputed Dues. Others

les5 than l yaar

44.08

52.18

1-2 yeart

11 46

2-3 years More than 3 years

0.68

Total

44.08

10-92

Total 96.85 t7 -46 0.68 114.99

Partaculars
As at 3lrt Mar 2023

Amount {Rs. ln lakhs)

(r)MSMt lUndisputed)

{r) Others (Undisputed)

(rir) oi5puted Dues MSME

lrv) Disputed Dues Others

less than l year

35.10

35.20

l-2 years 2-3 yeaB

1.90

MorP than 3 years Total

36.10
37.10

Iotal 71.30 r.90 73.20

SF

8-10

22-A

Pailiculars

Au



M/5 P^UL MEECHANI! NNAI'IC
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.rRiinS !..ur.d crldrio6, on.nrr.
book d.bl r.c.N.bl.i i b.rh pr.t.ntaid

3l00o uil6t.d, r.d!.m.bl., s.cur.d, 5rcr!2.n,
ioi{onv.rtb.d.b.irur.s otR31000..ch

Cdpo.i.r. r0 75 *P.r Annu6

c@po. P.Y6.nr r4q!.n.! .Annur
9an.ip.l Prtm.nt rr.qu.n(y
3!rl.r P.vh.nr.r th€.nd orr..or

s..ur.d by w.y ol P.np.{! .h..a. wth
.risti.t !..!r.d cr.dirdr. o^..rr.
bookd.br/r...'v.bl.!l bothpt.r..rind

lOO0 unlit.d, r.d..rabr., te.u,.d non

conv..r'bl. d.b.niur.i o, Rs r000.a.h

50ouil'n.d,red!.mrbl.,recx..d,5.('lr.n
60n conv.nibr.d.b.^rere, of R3 1000..ch

C@Pon R.l. .9 25xPerA.^ud
Coupo.P.tn..lf..qo.n.y Ann!.1
pnn.ip.l p.Yn.nt f 

'.qu.n.Y
Burer Prvm.d.r th. e.d ot r.nor

cdpo. R.r. .9 ?5%P.'An^um

c@co. P.ym.nr tr.qu...Y rinu
Pri..'p.l r.ym..l f r.qu.nq
Aur €t P:vn.d.r rh€.nd or r.no'

.!n'nl r..ur.d cr.d(.6 , @..nr.
boor d.bl /r...'vabr.r I both pt...nr t^d

s..uEd 6v r.y ol P.np.!tu.h.4. wtrh

!rdnlt..ur.d cr.dtroB on.n!..
6sr d.br k..av.br€rI bolh r...nr..d

l5Oounr'n.d,r.d..m.bi.,s.<ur.d,non
.oiv.^Dle d.b.nrur.r or tu 1000...h

c@pon R.t. 3 50 % Pu A.^uB
Cdpo. P.yn.nl fr.qu.n(y -Mo hly

P nn.ip.l P.yn.nr r nqu. n.y .

Bull€t P.v6.^r .r rh! lnd or r.^or

s..ur.d by *.y ol t.np.nu .h.{. w th

.r6!.! !..u..d crdtro^ o..irr.
b@r d.br /....'v.U.r { borh pr.(nr.nd

a00O u.rtr.d, r.d..m.br., r..ur.d, 9('lr?n,
.on..oN.('bl. dlh.nrures 0tR! 1000...h

c@pon t.!. .9 00%P.rA^ium
Cdp.n P.Vnc.t frequ.n.y , Monthlv

Pdn.lp.l P.tn.nt fr.qud.t .

Burl.t PaYm.^t .r ih! .id 6a t.^ot

s.cured bV w.y ol Panp.su ch.B. wLlh

.riltin3 s..u..d C..ditd. . on .nin
b@l d.bt /re.'v.bl.r ( bolh pr.r.nl .nd

48oo unBt.d, r.d..m.bh, k,..d, 
^o.-.onv.d'bk d.b.nru..r ol tu roon...h

C@9on R.l. .9 Oo* P.r Annlm
c@pon P.Yn.ntf r.qu..!Y :. a^hu.l
P dn.rp.l P.yn.nt tr.qu.n.y .

Bull.t Payn.^r ,l rh..^d oar.^o.

S.cur.d by s.v ol P.nra$u.h:{. wilh
.rRinat.cued c..dnoB, o^.nl'r.
boot d.bl /r...'v.bl.r ( borh p..t.nr.nd

r0oolnlirt.d,'.d..m.61e, r..!r.d. S..trh!^,
no^<oiv.nihb d.b..lw.r of R3 1000 ...h

C@pon R.r. .9 s0xPer An^un
C@pon Prym.nl F..qu.n.y r A^nlar
P dn.rr.l P.Yn.nr r r.ou.n.Y -

B!ll€t P.ym.nr.t rhe e.d orr.nor

S..urcd by w.y ol t..pasiu .h.[. *lh

b@I d.br /r..nv.bl€r ( borh pr.t.ilrnd

300unl' .d,r.d..m.bl.
.o{onv!dd. d.b.nt!r.t otRr r@...h

C&oon R.l. 3 75% P.r A.n!h
Co!!o. P.yn.nr rr.q!.n.v .H.ll Ye.rry

Pri..i!.l P.Vm.nl fr.qu.n.t .

Bur.i Pavm.^r ar lh€.nd oh!no,

s..ur.d bv *.Y otp.np.$u.h.(. *th
.!n'n3 r..ur.d cr.dno( oi.nl'r.
boot d.bl /r..ar.bl.i ( both Dr.r..! rnd

\1
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Note 11 : EoRROWINGS

O.sitn.t.d.t
AtfakvalueThroush falrvalue

Profit orLosi throuth profil or
losi

As ar 3lrt M.r 2024

{ii) lrom otherparti€s

(iiilcarLoan

704\,7tA.45 25,118.25

Current tiabilitite<
Non'Current Liabilities

Cu.reni liabilitit€t
Non-Curent Liabilinet

1.50

350
3.50

350Cu(enrliabfirrtes
Non-Current LrabiInei

{b)toans repayable on demand
(i)nom bankr

Ia)in lndian Rupees
(b) Ior.rrn curency expos!re

21,999.13

12,299 t3
9,700.00

21,999.r3
12,29913
9,700.00

22,465.42

9.383.64
11,082.78

2,6S1.83

1.950 43

591 39

22,466.42

9.183.64
11,082.78

2,65r.83
1.950.43

691.39

t9,1ts.a2
105.50

619.70
18,990.62

41,718.45
4t.1ta 45

19,715.42

105.50

619.10

18,990.62

55,8:i5.70
66,43610

(.)l.oanr from r€lat€d party
Loan lrom Dtreclors and Relanvet (Unsecured)

Loan from leliow subsidar et
Loan lrom rlolding Company (Unre.ured)

25,118.25

25,118.25

Borrown8t outside lndra

D.sitnated at

throuth profit or

At rt l1 Mirch 2021

Torai

(ii)from olher parties

(iii)car Loan

53,141.1638,332.55

{A)

Toral(

liltrom banls
Curent Lrabilitites

Non-Current Liabilrties

Curent Lrabrlilrle5

N0n,Currenl Liabiliries

3r.25
26.61

465

11.25
76.6t
4.65

current LrabrLlrtes

Nof -Cu(eni Liabrl,ties

(bllo.ni r.p.yabl€ on demand
(i,from banks

la)xr rnd,.n Rupees

lb) lorergn cune,rcy elposLrl.

13,814.18

5 814 18

8.000 00

t3,614.1E
5,814 t8
8.000 00

t4,808.51
14,808.61

r2,555.51
3,815.81

4,740.10

2,252.10

1,12153
1,130.57

r2,555.51
1.815.81

8,744_tO

2,252.10
1,121.53

1.130 57

24,487.12

114.80

533 70

23,734.62

5:t,141.16

53.141 16

24,447.12

114 80

633.70
23,738.62

38,332.s5
18,332 55

{.1Loans lrom relaied party
Loan from Diredors and Relatvet lUnserured)
Loan lrom fellow subsadanes

Loan from Holdlns company (Unsecured)

EorrownBr out5de lndia

t\ ,/

\(
0
-A 0



M/S PAI,',L MERCHANTS FINANCE PRIVATE LIA.iITEO

NOIE 114 : EORROWINGS SECURITIES DETAILS

c.!{.r!m.rr fhan..l.nr

r.rn. or R.d.6er,6ila.p.yh.nr

[.,

fttrldo tr i.qr.d by tsrF.$!,lo.nnr (h..t.on

Ih5 rdn u s..u,.d bv pr'F$u ndht (h.ra. d
.srdr.$.8 or rh. .6Fny.nd.s@.r.
cu.-:m.. .'En bv P.ul mach.ntl lrd IPr..t Co I

R.p.r.br. ri 13 equalhodhlY

'nn.1rm.nts 
da^iru to6 3rd aprir

I}tr orn tr s..u,.d by prrpa*u rlortnr (ha,r. o.
.ur.nr.$.tol rh. .omp.ny ..d .orpd .

!ttd lP,. co I

n.!4.hr. '. r).NJllathry
'6rrh.nB !t&q lrm 5th Od.aa

I}r lon G 9.o,.d bv Fnp*iu rlotma .i.rt. d
orcd 5eB ol rh. .6pr.y rnd (orrd.t.
c!.r. & I'8. 

'v 
P.ul ncrhaB trd {Pr.^rco,

i.p.y.bl. i. 16.qu.l monthly

'nn.lh.nG 
n.^,n8 rrm ti odoh.r

ni. b.n a s..o'.d by pnipa.ru tlo.tifl .h]r. d
.u,idt.sd'o, th..mp.ny.nd (olgd.t.
6! r.r* t'v.. h, P.ul n...h:nB rld {Pr.nrcoI

e.Fy.bl. r 16mo.thrv mlrrlmd.
{. 

'.a 
rim r5rrun. )o2l

ftr re^ 6 5..!..d by p..ip.itu frdlha (h,a. 6
.u-61 .s(, ol rh. .mp.ny :.d (q@,r.
cu.ftnre rv.n byp:ur m6.hMB lid {P.,..r co,

n.p.y.br. D r5 quil noorhry

nrE brn n s..ur.d bvr:n9-su lldrina(h,t. d
.orcnt.s!ko,ih.(6Pny.nd.o4oi.l.
6!,2 e.,*^6v e.d 6qrh5b I!d lp:!r,!!!9L

rh6run *., r.(u..d by,Eflr,(.fira. on v.h(k,

rh: oartrs.(u,.dby!p.rin..ha,G.nv.hd.r

R.r.yrtl. 
'n 

2a eq!.| 66rhly
iBr.rr.Ml! n.dllt ird 1( Aurln,

Th,s ld. tr !..u,.d by tsnp.su rb.nna .ti.t. on
rur-r :sed, ol rh. .mp.ny .nd .o,pd.r.

a rd lP,.nr c. I

Also, Ihd. a . ,.!ur.mdt ro n irn llrra arh
M.rlih in rh! rdi ol rDi r. b€ k.rr u.ds B..t! lra,
*hi.h 6 to b. p'dd.d by P:ul M6(h.nc (mr.d

f,.p.v:H. .n 2t .qu.l ffirHy
'.nrraaB ndint l'6 2ah

rhii lo.. ! sc.ur.d bv o.''p.sulroann..h.r.. o^
rurmr rsB or rh..onp.ny:id.dpor.t.
c!rr:ai..t,En hy P.ulh.rhrDtt tid lP.r..! Co I
Al{, thd. 6 . r.qun.n.nr td m.' r'n IOI c:rh
M:E'i'nlh.IdnolIoxtob.t.gl
f$i.}('ob.,lowd.dbYp:!lii.r.EnaLm&d

Th'! ldn 6 s.d..d byp.npNu tlo.nn!.hnt. d
d .nr,s.a or ih..ompanvend.-po,.t!
6uar.nr€..Mn bv P.ulB.(h.nc rrd lPr..r.o I

M.rtm 0 !h. roifr or rDRrob. r.
i.9.yrbl.,i r4 equ.l mdthly
r .[m.nr n.nifla ,F ?3rh

.ur€ni !$.8 oI rh..onr:nv, d!!r mui!:rru.dt /

.or@r.t.bondrrnd !n6ov..br.4.p. v n.d bv

Paul M.rch.nts tld lP.,.nr coI rl

rdpor.r. GorDnr.ra'6hyPrul Mad..B lrd.

.ur6r :*.4 ol ih. .d'4 rn hnov..br. ,,oFrr
dn d ht P.ur M-.h.nB lld tPrdr Co I r! R rudht.
l.sEi, b, .dpo'.t. tu*r:nte !'n. \ P:01

R.9.y.bl. 
'n 

,ta.qol mo.lhlv
l6'.llmaa nrdi.! f ,fr rn Mr.h,
lo22

ft6loan tr 9..ur.d bv Drnp.$urio:!^..h.r!. on

.urMr.s!$ ol rh..mprny rnd.olpo,I.
Gu.r.ut..i'EhbyP.!lm.r.h.nBtrd 1P.'.nicol
rh6. 6 . .xh h.'g'^,.qu r.fratol9r(.r to

R.9.Fbl. 
'n 

aa €qB.l hdrhry
r..t'rl6.nB n..i.a toE 1.r Mry,

IhslG. E 9<u,.C by p.np.$r ricrna.h:.t. u.
turdt.*.1!o, ih..mp.ny:nd.dPqar.
Guar.nt* a'Eh by p.ol m.r.ha.k ud lP.cd co I

ni'lo.k S..u,.dby p.rrisu fior!^3.i:,a! on

.u(ar .s.B or rh. .@p.ny r.d .o.por.r.
Rud ]p.,.nl co I

IrEr. n r d'rt n.'.'n r<u!.c.t or s* .' to

75r.O I

lzqr)o

1.*_



n@y.u. in 60 modhry i. rrmd!
n.frn. tm llrh  D.l 202.

nit l@n G 5dur.d bv p.'.pn3u fl€ljna ch.{c on
.urdn .sa. ol lh. .mp.ny .nd .orpd..
c{.r.de !'s bv ,.ur md.h..B tld. lPr.nt c6 )

ctrd tP.r..r co)

IhGro.i n s..u,.d by p.rp.su rlo.rin8.h..t. on
.urmr 8..$ ohh..onp..y.nd.spodr.

&(d (P,. co)
A!o. rhd. tr , r'.i oE I.r h.. Bsd! bddt'4 ro

i irkrBrnkri ft.d(i8rl

rh' r.,n tr e.r..d bl p.rp.nu no.hr .hrr. on

u(ar a$.t ol .h. .6r.ny rnd .,psar.
cu.r:nr..r,En b! P:urh.(hrnc nd lp.r.nt ao I

ft. lo:n 6 rep.y.bl. h 60 Donthly

i.n.llh.nc.i p.i ld.dul. a'v..

.ur.nt.*.t or rhr .omp..y .n,l rmmow.bl. p,op6ry
owned by P.u M.r.h.nB ud (P,.dco ) [ E funha

M.rh.na lld .nd rald:r cu.,.nr.. or Di,.dor

Ih't lo- arlud.r tlE rct{B d r.. r0oo
t th!, ..d 6 r.9.V.bl. rn 15 mdxy

'6!.ltEnB 
n p.' s.h.d{L t*n

fti'lo:.nkKdbYFnP*,unoriq.hr'.a
orala*.Golth.Mp.^y.ndlhmoE.U.p.o!..ty
oiEd hr P.ur M.,.n.nB |ld {P.dr co.l. n 6 ludEr
*or.d 6y .orpd.r. Gu:/..td t'wn by Paur

r'r.r.h:ni. trd ..d Par6.l 6u.r'de or otr.drt

ri6lo.n G s..u..d by !.np.$u llo.truchrr. o^
ru Hr.n.t ofth..mlrny rnn
ffid b.y prllMs.nrtu [d lp:r. .o I h s,udhn

u.,.n.nBkd:ndPalm:lcu,,.leo,Dtr.dd!

n p.y.H. 
'n 

l0.qu.lmo.lhlv

'6tJlmoG n.n'ntl.n 5.h

Ih, ldh s 9.u..d b, ts.r-! tl€t.a .hra. d
.u,,6r :raa o, rh. .mr.ny .nd rhmow.br. goFty
e..d by P.urM.rh.^!xd IP.,dr co I [ 6ronh..
i..u.dbr.orpor:r. 6ur,.nl..rvm b, Pe!]

M.r.h.nB ttd .nd Pdron.l 6c.rnre ol oirdst

rhtr lon ir 9.u..d byp.nD.su llo,tns.hrr3. on

.urmt.$d' oI th..6o.ny.nd..,po,.t.
6u.r.nr..!'v.n by r.urm.(fi.nB ud lpr.^t.o )

i.9.FU. 
'n 

r0 ceu.l Mthlv

'6rrhaa n.n4 kd srh .u,mr .s.G ol rh. .Fg.ny rDd corFr.rr
Gc.r:nt...'H bv P.ulm.rth..a [d lpar..t co I

R.p.y:bl.in5.qual qu.dary
hn: lm"hEn:nrn!nM 12rh M.Y

ro.trng.h.4.on

cu.r.nr.errFn bv P.u m.(h.nt (d lPr. co )

Ihtr l@n i! !.or.d by p.np.!iu I
.urd rs.B ol rh. .mp..y .nd .dpdrt.

6u.r.nr..3'En by P.ulm.rh.nB lrd {p.r.d.o,
!lr!4h 9n.ll .1..*. a.nr

V
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Note 12: PROVISIONS

1* In Earlier periods, advance tax Paid and TDS deducted was shown separatly while Provision for tax

was disclosed separately under current tax liabilities. However, from Financial year 2023-24 onwards

both these figures are being netted from each other for better presentation. Previous Figures have

also been reclassified.

*** ln Earlier periods, Provision for leave encashment and Bonus was merged under Expenses Payable

and was not shown separately. However, from Financial year 2023-24 onwards both these figures are

being shown seperately for better presentation. Previous FiBures have also been reclassified.

NOIE 13 : OTHER NON FINANCIAL TIABITITIES

Pa rt icu la rs
As at 31st Mat 2024 As at 31st Mar 2021

Amount {Rs. ln lakhs} Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

Other Non Financial Lrabilities 6.15 4.30

Total 6.15 4.30

SF

8:0

Pa rticu la rs
As at 31st Mat 2024 As at 31st Mat 2023

Amount {Rs. ln lakhs) Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

Provision for Taxes **

Provision on Advances
- Provision on standard assets (Stage 1& 2)

- Provision on NPA (Stage 3)

Provision for G ratu ity
Provision For Leave Encashment * * t
Provision For Bonus ***

238.30

L47 .83

90.47

LO2.77

41. r.5

87 .1,2

L92.75

139.30

53.45

469.34 3s 0.3 3

67.7L

33.2 3

56.63

Total

.A



flot.14: tQUTIY CAPTIAI

Aldrdlei,
tquin th.r.r o, R! 1o.*h

qrc.-!
fquiySh.r.3olRs l0.a.h

tubsnb.d & lullv P.rd !o

I 10,17,175 00

Ih.Comp.nv h.! o.. .1.$ ol .auq lhrr.r hav na . p, v.lu..f Rr 10 Fr rh.r. t..h rhar.hold.. a.llt'br. ror o^. v!r. p., rh.c h.ld
ri ln..v.ir ol r{!'d.ton..qu v rh.r.hold.B....lia,6r. ro r..!'v. the r.m.'n'nt.!.8 ofrh..6mp.nv.h.rd6t,buto^ or .rl o'!f.r.nn.l .hounr, 

'h 
p?opo^io^ ro

rh€r. .r. .o jh.r. 
'n 

rh. pr....dmr riv. y..6.lrot.d.r lully p.id up w thout p.raed b'nrr...'v.n 'n..ih/ 3d!r rh.,.r Sourht 3..r
Ih.E....o ih.'.!r.rry.d t i su. und.roDr'o.rdnd.onlr..rr/(omm'lm..l!torr.rpotrh.r.!/d6 nv.nlrm.nl

3 Re.onol,ar onol Number olshar.r Oul'iand'

sh.Groutlr.ndmr.rth.b.r,iiL olth.v..r
shar.s lsiu.d du(ni lh. V...
sh3r.r bouaht br.k dur nt rh. v../

Sh.r.r ouBi.nding .r th. .nd ol lh. y.ar

N.m. or shar.hold€r (Mr /Mtr.1

M, Irrierh B.i!.I ( Ar . .oo,ne ot P.ul m.rh.nl5

P.!l M.rch.^ri lrd lfi oldina cohp.ny)

Pr.l..dnr.rr.die rd'ons lo vanou! da$6 ol thar.r
nalhrt, pr.teren(.r..d R.rtndroi .tt..hnt tov.nd5 d.ls ol'h.r.t

No Sp..':lR'ghl! tu.rer.n..s & R.rlnd,onr All.d.d

Cl6intAaran..

O6ina B.l&.

(, ) DIVIOENO AIPOETIONMENI

I IDTVTOENO DrsIrrBUflON TA)r

.1614 trra.r

c !.run!.rP..mrumA.(ounr

And s..unn.r pi.6,um .d(ed oi Sh.r.6!e

O6ina B.r .

l+) N.r Prolrl aor ih. .ur..t v...

I.l/ l.loth., cmp..h.^r,w r..oh./lro.l li.l or

(.lrr..r..ro l6!.'@nr r.rfr.8 p.r Rsr

(.1 Tr.nrlq ro 6.n.7.1 R.rrr.

| ) 1r:.rr.r ro Sr.tutory R.54. rs 9a RBr

57 25

1.651.41

5,935,73

21263

4,615.42

13953

r86

Nrru.e a.d pu'pot. ol '.rdE

1t SF

s_10

A

s..siri.r p'.6iu6 fiR i.*m r.-.r.nB th. -.miu on BrE ol .quit eh.r.r .nd ..n b. dilr.d rn *.ddrc. sth lh. pr@itiont ot .h. Cmp.nEt a4l, 20rl
r.!..rt rh. runltrtiv. qonc or th€ C.6n:ny Ihtr R.*ry...n b. uril'r.d,n &.sd..G.wtrh rh. prdtrio^r ol th. C.nF.i.r A.r, 2orl
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N.IC I/ fTE\AND'OMMI!!ION NCOMT

[1/S PAUL T,TaRCH NTS Fill\ Ct PitVATE Lu4tTE0

For th. Y..r.nd.d lln M.r 2. tor rh. Y.rr.nd.dlIi Mr 2l

' During the FinancialYear ended on 315t Marrh 2024, the company, Paul Merchants Finance Pvt Ltd, has assigned Loans amounting to Rs, 161.08 Crores under Direct
Assignment (DA)a8reement entered with assignee. As per IND AS 109, the company is required to recognise Bain/loss on such assignment upfront at time of executron of
the transaction and resultantly, a gaan of Rs. 84,10,202l (arrived after reducing uorealiled Sains on pre'matured loans) has been recoSnised in the arcompanyrng frnancial
results. Thisgain has been arrived at after reducinS the carryinS value ofthe assiSned loan5 trom the sale consideration on assignment. This 5ale con5ideration rncludes the
amounl received from the assrgnee as wellas the excess anterest sp.ead expected to be earned by the company on the assiSned loan5 tilltheir realisation. Additronally, as

per RBlguideli6es on securitisation, company rs required to retain minimom 10% of the assigned loant on its books while 90% ofthe loan amount istGn5ferred lo the
a!sr8nee. Such condrlion has also been compled by ihe company and oecessary disclosures mandated by RBI as well a5lND AS-109 are given in the financial ttalements of

For th. Y..r.nd.d 3ln M.r 2{ fo. lh. Y..r .nd.d 31rl M..
2a

rn:om. lrom M!n.vTdnrLr a.ry(r

Olh.' Commi$ion l^.om..P.ulp.y

Oth., C.mnrsion ln.om!-lNUr.m.

145.61

1339

393 15

11.82

IC 830

/)ul -./'L-/-
rci 22-A

On fin.n.t.l A*r. m..rur.d
hn vr!. rhrou3h OCI m..r!..d !r Amortked corr F.n.n.'.| As*t!.1!tnti.d I'n.no.r Ai*rr das!l'ed

.r r., v.lu. rh/ough pronr

il€r.n rn.om. on Iorns

Gr'n o^ Ar!3n6.nr otF'n...i.r Aer.r'
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Particulars
For the Year ended 31st

Mat 24

For the Year ended 31st
Mar 23

Amount (Rs. ln lakhs) Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

lnterest on FDR

Miscellaneous lncome

Loan Setuicing Fee

23.92

88.98

133.02

9.62
41.94

0.38
Total 145.92 51.94

Note l8: OTHER INCOME

Note 19; FINANC€ COSTS

NOtE 20: EMPTOYET 8€NEFIT EXPENSES

(Rs. ln lakhs)

Particulars

tor the Year ended 315t Mar 24 for the Year ehded 31st Mar 23

On Financial liabilities
measured at fair value

throuth protit or los5

On Financial liabilities
measured at Amortised

Co5t

On f inancial liabilities
measured at fak value

through prolit or loss

On f inancial liabilitier
measured at Amortised

Cost

lnterest on borrowings
lnterest on NCD

Ilank CharSes

6,168.56

18.81

145.70

3,583.52

259.83

6,333.16 3,843.3s

for the Year ended 31.t
Mat 24

For the Year ended 31st
Mar 23

Amount (Rs. ln la khs) Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

Salaries & Allowances

Leave Encashment

Staff Welfare Expenses

Contribution to ESI& EPF

Gratuity
Eonus

2,914.60

38.47

102.38

144.71

40.57

77.29

2,019.20

32.05

65.68

1o2.49

26.14

61 .44

Total 3,182.02 2,373.60

6), ^_
\
\:1i



Note 21 : OTHER EXPENSES

NOTE 21 (i) Payments to auditors

1S F

For the Year ended 31st Mar
2024

For the Year ended 31st Mar
2023Particula rs

Amount (Rs. ln lakhs) Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

0.30

2 00.5 2

34.52

13 35

25.46
t24.35
99.84

287 .15

0.77
8.41

37.24

47L.58

307.01
L7 7.tt
58.99

5.9 7

64 77

4.65

7.99

0.89
9.78

13.35

2.87
1.01

109.68

Commission Exp-Dmt & lndo Nepal
Computer Expenses

Certification & lntergration Fees

Software Expenses

Telephone Expenses

Travelling & Conveya nce Expenses

lnsurance
Legal, Professiona | & Consultancy

Cha rges

Pavments To Auditors (Refer Note (l)
Svstem Aud it Expenses
Printing & Stationary
Rent, Taxes & Energy Cost

Secu rity Expenses

Advertisement & Pub licity
Provision For lmpairment Of Loan

Asset

Cashfree Chargeback/Dispute Lost

Repa ir & Maintenance
Director'S Fees, Allowances And

Expenses

Conference And Meeting Exp

Postage And Telegram
Don ation

FreiBht And Carriage

Server Charges

Auctioneer Charges

Bad Debts Written Off
Misc Office Expenses

0.3 5

47 .85

26.79

11.00

31.65

39.2 8

149.14

1.45,82

308.83

1.3 6
74.67
46.93

186.96

390.89
220.83

45.55

1,.22

5 8.70

20.56

LL.84

4.42
10.60

28.06

8.01

77 .27

195.06

Total 2,622.99 2,05 5.51

For the Year ended 31st Mar
2023

Amount (Rs. ln lakhs) Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)
Payments to the aud itor

0.59

0.18

0.59

0.18

0.59

Statutory Aud at Fees

Tax Audit Fees

Fees for other services

o.771.3 6Tota I

,.F

4.*-!0

For the Year ended 31st Mar
zo24



Note 22: Corporate Social Responsibility & other Social Welfare Ex pen ses

Note 23 :Exce tiona I ltems

* During 2nd Quarter, Penalty of Rs. 30.5 lakhs has been imposed upon Paul Merchants Finance Private

Limited (PMFPL) by the Reserve Bank of lndia for violation of Para 9.1(ii)(d) of the Master Directions on

PPls dated Aug 27,2021. The said amount was previously disclosed as a contingent liability in financials

fot FY 2022-23 and has been pa id in fu ll du ring the qua rter upon receipt of fina I order. The same is

disclosed as an extraordinary item in the standalone financial results of PM FPL as well as the

consolidated financial results of the group SFI

:-l

Pa rticu la rs

For the Year ended 31st Mar
2024

For the Year ended 31st Mar
2023

Amount (Rs. ln lakhs) Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

A) Gross Amount Required to be
spent by the Co. During the Year

53.11

Bl Amount Spent on CSR Durint the
year
-Setting up of old age home and Day

- Animal Welfare
- Eradicating hu nger
- G irls Education

C) Shortfall in expenditure, ifany
D) Total of Shortfall of earlier years , i

E) Reason of Shortfall
t) Nature of CSR Activities
G) Details of CSR contributed to
related Parties including Trust
controlled by Company

H) Details of movement in provisions

if any, made with respect to a liability
by enterint into a contractual
obligation

Amount Paid

10.91

20.00

20.11

Tota I 68.87 51.62

For the Year ended 31st Mar
2024

For the Year ended 31st Mar
2023

Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

Particulars

Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

30.s0
8.54Loss on Cyber Fraud Case

RBI Penalties A/c *

8.54Total 30.50

Amount Paid

49.37

o.79

42.55

23.88

1.65

0



Note 24: Related Party Disclosures
(As per lnd AS 24 issued by lCAl)

A.l"ist ol Related Parties havin control or significant influence

5r. No. Nature of Relationaship Name of Related Party

1 HoldinB Company Paul Merchants Limited

2 Fellow Subsidiary Company Paul lnfotech Private Limited
PML Realtors Private Limited

3 Key Management Personnel

Mrs. Sarita Rani Bansal Whole Time Director

Mr. Shaibu Geevarghese Cherian - Whole
Time Director

Mrs. Aarti Markan - Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Gourav Kapoor - Company Secretary (Till

10..01.2024)
Mrs. Shivani 5harma - Company Secretary

(From 11.01.2024 onwards)

A Director Mr. Rajneesh Bansal - Director

5
Relative of Directors / Key ManaSement

Personnel Mrs. Aastha Bansal - Relative of Director
Mr. Sandeep Bansal - Relative of Director
Mrs. Nita Bansal - Relative of Director

Tapa Gas Service

Paul Di5tributors
Channel Management & Marketing

6
Firm in which Director or relative of Director is

proprietor

Bright Cove Goods

Paul lnnovations LLP

Niraa Talent
Guru Production
Cable Distribution Services

Bright Furnishing LLP

l-Shop

Shubh Shop
White Hill Distribution

Tea Stall

Pitaara MarketinB

7
Partnership fim in which Director or relative of
Dlrector is a partner

Magical Vacation Travel & Tourism LLC, UAE

Paul Fincare Private Limited
9X Media Private Limited

ADB 21 Media Private Limited

Bo5na Digital Entertainment Private Limited

BBSM Films Privare Limited

Collective Media Ventures Private Limited

Divya Broadcasting Private Limited

lnfotechture Solutions Private Lamated

(formerly Paul lnstacred Private Limited)

Paul E commerce Private Limited

Paulswift Credit Private Limited

Paul Excursions Private Limited

Paul Merchants Jewels & Metals LLP

Paul Overseas Private Limited

Pitaara Talkies Private Limited
PML Holidays Private Limited

Companies in which Director / Relative of
director exercise cont.ol/significant inf luence

8

o

Rfl.

Mr. Sat Paul Bansal- Chairman & Managing
Dire.tor

,'%
-scol]9.3i.0'l:,



B Disclorure ofransadions between the Companyand related parties

ror the Period ended 315t Mar 2024

Natur. olTransaction
(eY Manat.ment Personnel

Amo!nt las. rn lakhs)

(Hold lng Company)
amosnt {8r. rn lathr)

Dir.ctor& Rel ive ol
Oi..cto./xMP Anount

lakhr)
21 16

GST on corporare guaranieeAiven
Renl p.rd to Whole Time Orector
Rermbursemeht ol Leaal ErD€.ses

lI 68

14 40

18 15

5l0Nei Servrce Char6es Re.erved .DMI

093

serv(. charEes Pa d - lndo Nepal

Net Amount ot workins .aprtal .eoard

(omoiision forcrotr reference sales oI forer
2,185 /5

24 3A

Commrsnon fo, c,oss r.le'en.e sale t)7
232.61 000

4,962 75

P!,chase of Roods & serv,ces 27! 71

5ale oI Bood! & setuices

Sale ol Eoods & seru,ces 1t l0
sale o, soodr & rerui.€s
Sale of Boodt & setuices lr 13

Sale o, Roods & rereces 016
Sale o, Boods & r€rvices 194
Sale of qood5 & services 2ra
saie of Eoods & servret
Add(ronal So..ownB fiom drre.tor

020
278 00

Add'Ional EorowrnE f.onr (MP

Addilronal Bo.iownt trofr KMP

-l!!!EJ! frp 9Lb 9!l!y!ir!gI ll€cr.ol
Intererl Exp on borownE l.om (MP
lnterest Exp o. borowinE from KMP _
Loan & Advance,epa.d to Orrecror
Loan & Advance repard to (MP

Loan & Advan.e reoard ro kMP

Add, tionrl Borowint f.om r.llow Subediary

282 00

t0 00

nt8
0 51

214 50

30 00

t7 45
lnterest Exp on bo.rowing hom Feilow

Loan & Advance repard lo Fellow Subsrdrary

lo.n & Advan.€ Brven lo
Loan & Advance Bepaid by Related Parlv

30 00

200 o0

200 00
lnl€rell income on Loan & Advancet tiven to 7A 12

12 00

514.02 60102

lnle.err 
'ncom€ 

on toan & Adv...€r6rven to

111

266

lnt€resl income on Loan & Advances tiven to

Lodn & Advance repaid bV Whole-Ime Oire.tor

Rehunerarion paid to relative ofdirector
Remune,etron pard to Wholc
Fem!n!rarion pard ro CMO

Remun€ralion paid to Compa.v 5ec.elarv &

Ch'el thanoal Ot ,.er

6t 20

t00 00

ll01

1,r11.25 12,489 61

C. Oiecloture olOr,tetandint balan.e ol related p..tiet

Nature of T6.ta.tion
(soldint Company)

Amount (R!. rn lakh,

on..t.r & Relrtlv. dl
Oire.torlx MP Amoont

(Rs. rn l.kh,

K.yManatement P.rronnel
Amou.r {Rs.In lalh,

14 40

18,990.52

G5T on corporate t!aranlee payable

wo,l,nsaapnallacdrty __

086
r25

Loan & Advan.e! payable to tellow Subsrdiary

loan & Advan(espavabl€ to Drector 63 50

519 /0

Loan & Advancer payable to (MP 42 00

loan & Advances recerv.ble lrom R.lated Pa.ty 1/5 00

Loao & Advince! rece,vablefrom Whole Time
10 49

t2 49 55.51 800 14
l_A/-

CI
e2i 830
oR 22-A
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For th. Period ended 31st Mar2023

Nature ofT.antaction
Key Managem€nt Pereonnel {Holdint company)

amount {Rr. rn lakhd

Dircctor & Eerative of
Di..cto/KM P Amount

l.kht
Renr pa'd to Holdin8 Co panr 1174
Re.t pard lo WholeTime Dtrecto. 10 81

Re.t recerved from related partv 039
Nd Serv,ce (hartes Received lrom Holdrnt 331

Servi.e Cha,E€s Paid to relat€d Part! 491
Net addrtronal workinE caprtal 5,257 00
lnteresr p.rd on workrnB capitaltaken lrom sold 1,87180

Commi!tio. Received from Hodlin: Companvfo 29 99

Purchase oaBoods & 5ervrces from xoldr.6

slllol Eq!!!qi!M( rtsC?lqd p!!I

Add,r,oral 8o(ow,nE,rom (ha'ma. &
106 50

Addrnonal Bo(owinB fron Whole Trhe Dr/ecror 22 00

)41 60

691

lnterest Exp oh bo.rounBfrom direclor 629
tnteren trp on borowint fiom Charman &

541

lnterBt txp on bo.rowi.t lrom whole-tim€ 025

256 70
l.oan & 

^d!ance 
repa d to Chairmai &

Advance rep.'d to Whole Trme Otrector

Additional Borowi.E l.om relative ofdrrector

22 00

30 00

Addinonal Bo owinEkom Fellow5ubedrary 409 00

038lnteresr Erp on borowint lrom relared pany

lnterett [rp o. borowrnt trom relalive ol

lnterert Erp o. borowint lrom fellow

Loan &-/\d!ance repa d ro relared p ry

Loan & Advance repard to relat,ve oI O re.tor

Loan &Advan(e repard lo Fellow Subsrd,ary

lnteiest income on Loan & Advances tiven 10

601

15 00

153 50

l!8 50

800 00

15 62

l.tere5l .ncome on toan & Advance! 8av.n to
090

Advance paid lo Whole Time oirector
Remu.eratron pard to relatrve otdtrector

11.16

453
Rehuneial'on pa'd to Whole lime Ore.lo, 54 52

Remuner.no. pard to CMD

Remuneration paid ro Compan y Secretary &

Chief frnanoal Officer
27 95

t,225 55 7,526 00 2,208 05

139.58

rtr..tor

Lodn & Advan(e repard lo Otreclor i

1

I 8Zr .830

22-A



Classification as

per RBI Norms

Asset clessification as

per lnd AS 109

Gross Carrying

Amount as per lnd AS (Provision3)as

requlred under lnd AS

109

Net Carrying

required as per
IRACP norm5

Differcnce
between lnd AS 109

IRACP norms
2 3 4 s=(3)-(4) 6 7={4)-(6)

Performing Asset

Standard
Stage 1 92,523.18 131.34 92,391.85 231.31 199 97)
Stage 2 2,359.21 2,341.7t 590 10.59

Sub total 94,882.39 t47.43 94,734.56 237.2L (8s.38)

Non-Performlng

Asset (NPA)

SLrb Standard Stage-l 646.14 38.92 607.86 64.68 17s.76)

Doubtful up to I

Sta8e 3 143 010 113 029 (0 1s)

Doubtful I lo 3

years Stage 3 t3.11 0.96 12 81 413 (3 17)

Doubtlul More

than 3 years Stage 3 6.94 049 645 347 (2 98)

Stage 3 50.00 50.00 50 00

Subtotalfor
Doubtful 72.r5 51.55 20.60 51.49 (5.34)

Sta8e 3

Subtotalfor NPA 718.93 90-41 628.46 121_57 (32.10)

Other items tuch

as Suarantees,
loan

Stage 1

StaSe 2

Stage 3

Subtotal

Note 25: oisclosure required a5 per Master oirection - Reserve gank ot lndia (Non-BBnking Financiai Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions,

2023,vide RBI/OoR/2023-24/106 OoR.FlN.REC.No.4S/03.10.LLg/2021.24 dated October 19, 2023.

ln accordance with the reSulalo.y Suidance on implementation of lnd AS i39ued by RBI on October 19, 202:1, the company has computed provision as

per lncome recotnition Asset Classifi.ation and proviiionS norms(lRACp) issued by RBI solsly for comparative purpose a5 specified therein. A
comparasion between provision required under IRACP and impairment allowance made under IND AS 109 ls glven belowl

{Rr. ln laths)

{l ) The shortfall of Rs. 121.48 lakhg Between the provisions as per Rgl IRAC Norms and Loss allowances as per IND AS 109 has been marntarned as

lmpairment Reserve in accordance with RBI Master Directions vide RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.FlN.RtC.No.45/03.10.119/2023 24 October 19, 2023

(2)The company has followed the assumption (onta,ned in INIAS 109 about considering StaSe-1 advances as those which are upto 30 days past due fhe
same is as per board approved po|cy as well as placed before Audit Committe Board
(3) The company have early adopted the Glide Path for NPA classificataon norms as mentioned in RBI Master Directions vade RBI/DoR/2O23-241106

DoR.flN.REC.No.45/03.10.119/2023-24 Octobet 19, 2023 and amended time to time and has clalsified it5 debts outstandin8 er(eedinB q) day5 as NPA.

lotal
Stage I 92,521 18 131.34 92,391 85 231 31 (99 97)

StaBe 2 2,359 21 16 49 2,342_11. 590 10 59

Stage 3 718.93 90 41 628 46 t22.51 132.10)

Total 95,601.31 238.30 9S,363.02 359.78 (12r.48)

SC

D
oF, 22 A

\

sFr

4
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Note 26. Earnings per Share

Particulars
As at 31st Mar 2024

Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

As at 3lst March 2023

Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

Net Profit for the Year lRs.in Lokhsl

Number of Equity Shares (/Vos. )

Basic & Oiluted EPS (8s per Shorcl

3,053.40

3,87,71.,469

7.88

7,494.45

3,10,77,7t5

6.11

Note 27: OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Particulars
As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st March 2023

Remeasurement (Gain)Loss on defined benefit obligations

lncome tax .elating to above

Remeasurement [os5 on defined benefit obli8ations (net of
Tax)

2.49

-0.63

sl9

36

Note 28r Loan to Assets Ratio

Disclosure as per paratraph 37.1.1 (ii) of Master Directions vide RBllOoRl2023-24l1.06 DoR,FlN.REC. No.45 103,1O.119/2021-24 dated October
19,2023, the Company is maintaining Loan to Assets Ratio of 95.55% for loan5 granted against collateral security of Gold ,ewellery.

Particulars
As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st March 2023

Amount (Rs, ln lakhs) Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

Advances aEainst security of Gold lewellery

TotalAssets of the Company

95,338.69 69,799.s8

7 4,620.")99,775.44

Note 29: Minimum Revenue from Operatio.s

The company has complied with RBI guidelines with regard to minimum stipulated revenue from operations of 50% since its start of business

operations from December 2012.

Particulars
As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st March 2023

Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

Number of Gold loan Accounts Auctioned 3,928 2,461

Outstanding dues on these loan accounts 2,299.64 1.,464.87

Realrsed Amount from auction 2,312.83

The Company confirms that none of the group companies have participated in the above auctions, The details have been compiled by the

management and relied by auditors

03s
Y.ZZ
00 0

Amount (Rs. ln lakhsl Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

Note 30: Disclosures ar per paragraph 37.4,4 of RBI Master Directions vide RBI/DoR/2023-24l106 OoR. FIN.REC. No.45/03.10.119/2023-24
dated October 19,2023

1,497.39

)\
'//



Note 31 i Disclosure as per para 31 of RBI Master Directioni vide RBllooRl2021"2alfi6 DoR.FlN. R€C.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated
October 19,2023

Rs. ln lakhs

Pafticulars
For the Period ended 31st Mar 2024

Amount O/S

As at 31st Mar 2024sNo Liabilities Side

For the Period ended 31st Mar 2023

Amount O/S

A5 at 31st Mar 2023

{1)
loans & advances availed by NBFC inclusive of
interest accured thereon but not paid

(a) Debenture.Secured 722.47
'lJnsecured NIL N -

(other Falling within the meaning of public deposit)

NILN -

(b) Deferred Credits NIL NIL

(c) Term Loans from Bank/Fi 28,1L8.2a 14,808.61

N lt- NIL(d) lnter Corporate Loans & Borrowings

NIL(e)Comme.cial Paper NIL

NIL NIL

(i) Other Borrowrng From Bank/Fl

(ii)toan From Related Party

(f) Public Deposits

lgfother toan-

(2)

Break Up of 1(f) above (outstandinB public deposit
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid)

N ll-

19,115.82

(a) ln the form of unsecured debentures Ntt

N ll-

13,845.43

24,48t.12

NIL

N[-

(b) ln the form of Partly secured debentures i.e.

debentures where there is a shortfall in the value of
security NIL

Ntt( c ) other Public Deposits NIL

As at 31rt Mar 2024 As at 31sr Mar 2023Assets Side

(3)

Breakup of Ioan & Advan.es including Bill
Receivables (other than those included in (4)

below):

Breakup of leased Asret & Stock on hire & other
assets counting towards asset financint activities

(a)Secured

(b) Unsecured

95,538 /8

62.53

(4)

t0,747.2-t

32 8)

(i) Lease Assets lncluding lease rentals under sundry

debtors:

NIL(a) Financial Lease Ntt

N " NIL(b)Operating Lease
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry

debtors

Ntt(a) Asset on Hire N -

(b) Repossessed Assets NIL NIL

(iai) Other loans counting towards asset financing

activities

(s)

N[-

NIL

(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed

(b) Loans other than (a) above

Cu rrent lnvc5tmcnts
l. Quoted

(i) Shares

(a) Equity F-uEN

Nlt

NIL

NIL

(b) Preference NIL/.,1r -x\ NIL

(ii) Debentures and Bonds i:r/Nerorns\?\ N[- N -

\1 NIL l NIL

Yr-\-tl/"7 NIL

x{J-gDz Ntr

(iri) Units of Mulual Fund5

(iv) Goverement Securities NIL

(v) Others (pleasc spccify) NIL

19,002.60

N ll-

Sreakup of inveJtments



2. Unouoted

(i)Shares

NILN -

Nlt NIL

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(a) Equity

(b) Preference
Ntt N -

NIL(iii) Units of Mutual Funds NIL

(iv) Goverement Securities NIL NIL
(v) others (please specify) N - Ntt

Long Term lnvestments

(i) Shares

(a) Equity NIL Ntr

(b) Preference Ntt NIL

Ntt(ii) Debentures and Eonds Ntr
Ntr(iii) Units of Mutual Funds Ntt

(iv) Goverement Securities NIL NIL
(v) Others (please specify) NIL NIL

(i) Shares

NIL NIL(a) Equity

NIL{b) Preference NI

Ntr Ntr(ii) Debentures and Bonds

NIL NIL(iii) Units of Mutual Funds

NIL(iv) Goverement Securities NIL

Nlt-(v) Others (please specify) NIL

Eorrower g,oup- wise classification of assets

financed as in {3)& (4) above:

As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st Mar 2023Category

Amount (Rs. ln lakh5)1. Related Parties Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

(a) Subsidiaries

(b) Company in the same group

(c )Other Related Parties 176.61

2.Other than related parties

70,707.21(a)secured 95,362.14

32 82(b) Unsecured

TOTAI. 70,740.O1

l'tl
lnvestor troup- wise classification of all

investments (current & Long Term ) in shares and

securities (both quoted & unquoted)

62.53

Category
Mark€t Value/ Break up or fair value or

NAV
Books Value (net pof provision)

l. Related Parties

{a)subsidiaries

(b) company in the same group

(c )Other Related Parties

2.Other than related parties

TOTAL

(8) - Other lntormation

Particulars Amount (Rs. ln lakhs) Amount (Rr. ln lakhs)

(i) Gros5 Non PerforminB Assets

NI Ntt

(b) other than Related Parties

(a) Related Panies

718.92

(ii) Net Non Perfo.ming Assets /-:::i;::.\
Ntt

628

519.80

NI
498.57(b) Other than Related Parties

a) Related Panies

(iii) Asset acquire in staisfaction of Debt' n

JS

2. Unquoted

(6)

95,601.31

\

t'/



Note 32. Setment reporting

As pet IND AS-108 on Segment Reporting, segment inloftnotion is ptovided below

For the year endin8 31st Mar 2024 For the year endint 31st Mar 2023

Setment Revenue

GOTO LOAN
DO[lESTIC MONEY TRANSFER

PERSONAL TOAN
PREPAID INSTRUMENTS
DISTRIBUTION
OTI.] ER

16,430.78
69.56

1.43
22.57

197.54
5.10

10,555.80
392-98

32.68
50.63
11.82
53.71_

lncome from Operation 16,728.97 11,097.62

1

c

d

Segment Expendlture
GOTD LOAN
DOMESTIC MONEY TRANSFER

PTRSONAL LOAN
PREPAIO INSTRUMENTS
DISTRIBUTION

OTHER

12,266_21

104.98
38.69

156.32
201.96

1.75

7,944.41
406.89

t9-91
726.99

55.24
0.48

Erpenses from operation 12,169.96 8,5S3.98

PRoFITBEFORE TAx (a)- (b ) 3,959.01 2,543.64

3

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

Segment Assets

GOLO LOAN

DOMESTIC MONEY IRANSFER

PERSONAL LOAN

PR€PAIO INSTRUMENTS

DISTRIBUTION

OTHER

99,006.92
218.53

0.14
413.64

98.49
22.55

73,O23.44

395.28

38.54

494.90
3i.59
5.02

99,420.26 73,993.23

(a)
(b)

d

Segmenr tiabilities
GOLD LOAN

DOMESIlC MONTY TRANSFER

?TRSONAI LOAN

PREPAID INSTRUMENTS

OISTRIBUTION

OTHER

11,925.40
16.75

112.44

47.26

0.84

53,427.46

745.29

0.15
77 _53

4.28

0.33

TotalLiabilities 12,096.70 54,055.05

CapitalEmployed

GOtO tOAN
DOMT5TIC MONEY TRANSFER

PERSONAL LOAN
PREPAID INSTRUMENTS

DISTRIEUTION

OTI]ER
UNALLOCATED ASSEfS
UNALLOCATED LIABILITIES

27,047.52
201-18

0.14
361.20

57.22
21.10

TotalCapitalEmployed 27,723.56 19,938.18

Rs.ln lakh

19,796.42
249_99

38.39
477.38
31.31

4.69

FS

,/. _

1

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
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Note 33r Oisclorure under Section 22 ofThe Mlcro, Smalland M€dlum Ent€rpris€r Dcvelopment A.L 2m6

NOIE 34: DISCLOSURE AS PER AMTNOED SCHEDUIE lllTO THE COMPANIES ACT,2013

\

As at 31st Mar 2024
Amount (Rs.In lakhs)

A5 at 31rt Mar 2023

Amount (Rs.ln hrhs)
The prin.ipalamount and the interest due thereon Ito beshown separately)
r€maininS unpaid to any5uppiier a5 at the end of €ach accountingyear

Principal'44.08 Principal- 16.10
lnterert Oue - Nil

The amount of anterest paid bythe buyerln terms ofse.tion 16, along wath the
amount of the payment made to the supptier beyondth€ appoint€d day during each NIL NIL

The amount ofinterestdue and payable forthe period ofdelay in making payment
(which have be€n paid but beyond the appointed day durinttheyear)butwithout
adding the interest specified underthis act

NIL NIL

The amount ofinterest acc.ued and remainiag unpaid at the end ofeach accounting
N]L NLL

The amouni offunher interest remainin8 due and payable even in the 5u€ceedang

years, untilsuch datewhen the interert dues ar above areactually paid to thesmall
enterprise, for the purpose ofdisallowance as. dedustible expenditu re under Section

73

L ulL

{a) There are no differences in the quarterly r€turnr or gtatements (ruch ar rtock netements)filed bycompany. Allsuch

statements are in a8r€ement withthe Bools of accounts,

lb) No proceedings have been initiated or a re pending aga inst the Company for ho lding a ny B€nam i property under the Eenami
Property (Prohibitio n) Act ,1988 (45 of 1988)and the rule5 made thereunder.

(c) The com pany has not been declared willfu I defaulter by any bank or financia I institution or government or any govenm€nt

(d) The company does not have any transaction with the Strike OffCompanies ln the Fin.ncialYear.

(el No registration or satisfaction ofcharges are pendin8to befiled with ROc.

(0 There are no transactions recorded in the book ofectounts, which ar€ disclosed duringthe hcome tax assessment /search/survey.

{g) The company has nottraded orinvested in crypto currency or virtualcurrency duringthe financialyear.

lh) There i5 no scheme of Amalgamation/M€G€r is approved by Corr(/NCLT, as no5uch case for Amaltamation/M€G€r relat€d to
company i5 pendlng before anyCourt/NCtT.

lil No immovable property i5 owned bythecompany.

{j) The .ompa ny har complied with the nu mber of layers prescribed under se.tion 2 (87 } of the companl€s Aci 2013.

rl\
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Note 35: Financial Ratios

a) capiial to riek-welthted ratlo(CRAR)

Mar'24 Mar'23

28% 3Zvo

Amount
ln Lakhs)

(Rs Amount
in Lakhs)

{Rs

As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st Mar 2023

Tier 1 Capitel 27,4A9.75 19,69s.19

Tier 2 Capital 13134

Total Regulatory Ca pital z7,54\OA 19,695.19

Attregate Rirk weighted A55etr 97,523.76 67,O97.A1

Tier l CapitalRatlo 2a% 32;4

Tier 2 CtspitalSatio 0%

Capital to risl-weighted asset Ratio 2Ao/"

b) Liquidlty Coverage ratlo
It i5 not mandated to be complied with by non-deposit taking NBFC5 having ass€t size below <5,000 crore. Therefore, 5ame is not applicable

to the company for FY 2023-24.

.s

D
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I{ote 36 : Disclosure as pe. para 27.2 of RBI Master Directionr vld€ RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR,Fll{.REC.No.45/O3,10.119/2023-24 dated
OEtober 19,2023

Section I

A) Exposure

1) Exposure to rcal estate sector
(Amount in a Lakhs)

Category Current

a) Resrdenlial Mortgages -
Lending fully secur€d by morlgages on residential property that is orwillbe occupied by the bo.rower or
lhal s renlod. Exposuro would also include non-fund basod (NFB) limits-

NIL NIL

b) Co rmercial Real Estate -
Lending secured by mongaBes on comm€rcial realeslate (oflice buildings, relail space, mullipurpose commercisl
pr€mrses, multifamily resid€ntial buildingi, multi tenanted commcrcial premiscs. indushal or warehousc

space, hotels. land acquisition, d.velopm€nt and construction, elc.) Exposure would also include non-fund
based (NFB) lim,rs.

107 63

c ) lnyesmcntr in Mongag.-Back€d Sccurilies ( MBS) and olhcr s€.uritiz.d cxposures -
r Resrdentral
ii Com,nercirl R.al Eshte NIL NIL

ii) lndircct Exposurg
Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on NationalHousing Bank and Housing Finance
Companiss.

NIL NIL

Total Exposure to RealEstate Sector 198.{9 107.61

&As
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2) Exposure to capital ma*el
(Amount in I Lakhs)

Particulars
Current
Year

Previous
Year

i) Drrect investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible
debentures and units of equity oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is
not exclusively invested in corporate debt

z z

ii) Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on
clean basis to indivaduals for investment in shares (including lPOs / ESOPS),
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity oriented mutual
funds

iii) Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as
primary security

iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the
collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures
or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the p.imary security other than
shares / convertible bonds / convertlble debentures / units of equity oriented
mutual funds does not fully cover the advances

v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued
on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers

vi) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares /
bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's
contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
resources

vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues

viii) Underwriting commatments taken up by the NBFCS in .espect oI primary
issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity
oriented mutualfunds

ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading

x)
(0
(iD

(iiD

Allexposu.es to Alternative lnvestment Funds
Category I

Category ll
Category lll

Total exposure to capital market

' NBFCS may omit those line items whici are nol applicaue/ nol permitled or have nil exposur6 both in curEnl and previous year. Furlher,
exposures agarnsi pledge ot shares by promolers of a conrpany shdl be shom separalely
under lhe respeclive ljne (ems.

sco 8
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3 Sectotol e
Current Year

TotalExpoauro
{include3 on b.lance

shoet and off.
balanco sho6t

exposure)
(a lakhs)

Gross NPAs
(a lakhs)

Porcentago of
Gross NPAg to
lotal exposurs
in thal sector

Total Exposuro
(lncludes on
balance sheet and
ofi-balanco shoet
exposuro)
(? lakhs)

Gross NPAs
(a lakhs)

Perc6ntag6 of
Gross NPA3 lo
totaloxposure
ln that sectorSectors

1. Agriculture and
NIL N - NIL

2. lndustry

Others
Total of lndustry
(i+ii1...+Others) N tl- NIL NIL NIL NIL

3. Services
176.61 0.00 NIL 800.00 0.00 NIL

ii..

Other5

0.00 NIL 800.00 0.00 N[,
Total of Serviaes

{i+ii+...+Otheri) 176.61

4. PersonalLoans
21.79 66.61%0.00 0.00 NIL

Others

NIL 21.19 66.67%

Total of Personal Loans

(i+ii+...+Others)
0.00

5. Others

(a)Gold Loans 95362.18 668.92 0.70% 69907.21 558.01 0.80%

50.00 19.96%(b) Other Loans 62.s3

0.75% o.ao%Totalofothers 95424.7 L 118.92

Note:
i. The disclosure5 as above shall be based on the sector-wise and industry-wise bank credit (SIBC) return 5ubmitted by scheduled commercial bank5 to the
Reserve Eank and published by Reserve Bank as 'sectoral Deployment of Bank Credit'.

ii. tn the disclosures ai above, if within a sector, exposure to a specific rub-sector/industry is more than 10 per cent of Tier I Capitalof a NBFC, the same

shallbe disclosed separately within that sector. Further, within a sector, ifexposure to specific sub-sector/industry is lessthan 10 percent ofTier lCapital

such exposures shallbe clubbed and disclosed as "Others" within that sector.

iii- fhe company has not classified Sold loans Sranted to bo.rowers such as small and marginal farme.5 or those involved in other allied activites in S.No.1

above as they are .ot crop loans but instead backed by gold ornaments

NIL Ntt NIL

ii

NIL

32.82

i.

0.00

558.0169907.21

tt T
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Particulars

Current Yeat
i) Total amount of
Intra-group
exposures (t lakhs)

ii) Total amount of
top 20 intra-group
exPosures (? lakhs)

iii) Percentage of intra
group exposures to
total exposure of the
NBFC on
borrowers/customers (a

lakhs)

i) Totalamount of
intra-group
exposures (a lakhs)

ii) Total amount of
top 20 intra{roup
exposures (a lakhs)

iii) Percentage of
intra{roup exposures
to total exposure of
the NBFC on
borrowers/customers (?

lakhs)

toans & Advances Given
(Outstanding as on 31st March)

Loans & Advan.es

Taken(Outstanding as on 31st

March)

176.6L

19715.82

L7 6.61

19715.82

0.1.8%

29.00.,4

800.00

24487.12

800.00

24487.12

L.13%

46.40%

5) Unhedged forcign cutency exposure NBFCS sholl disclose detoils oI its unhedqed foreiqn cuftency exposures. Fudhea it sholl olso

disclose theit policies to monoge currency induced risk.

NIL

SECTOR
sc0

4 t I ntrd-g rou p ex pos u res
NBFC5 shall make the following disclosures for the current year with comparatives for the previous year:

c-*
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The tax charge shown in the gtatement of profit and loss diflers from the tax char8e that would apply ifallprofits had been charged at
lndia aorporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the taxexpense and the ccounting profit multiplied by lndia's domestic tax rate for
the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is, as follows:

(Rs.ln lalhs)

tY 2023-24 FY 2022"23

Acco!nting profit before tax 3,959.01 2,552.19

25.168% 25.168%

Cornputed tax expense 995.40 642.34

[xempted income

Non deductible items 41.65 53.95

Short / (Excess)provision fortax relatingto prioryears (23.06) (1.32)

{s8.00) 11.03

Others {s1.38) (s5.79)

Tar expenses recoen sed in the statement of Profit & Loss 905.61

Effect ve tax rale 22.a7% 25.44%

Note 38: Details of Loan, not in default, transferred through As.i8nment

Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2024 Year Ended March 31,2023

Aggregate principal outstandingof loanstransferred
in Lakhs)

(Rs.

14,496.90

Weighted average residual maturity (in months) 5.46

Weighted average holding period (in months) 5.55

Avera8e retention of beneficial economic intere5t (IVRR) (%) 10.00%

Average coverage of tangible security (%) 147.29%

Rating wise distribution of loans transferred Unrated

+ This note refers to Para-86 of Master Direction - Reserve Bank of lndia {Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions, 2021. During the
tjnancial Year ended on 31st March 2024, the company have done three Direct Assignment transactions to transfer its loan assets. The

company have complied with the accounting treatment a5 given under lnd AS 109 and also to RBI guidelines regardinS Minimum
Retention Ratio (MRR) and Minimum Holding Period {MHP) and other extant regulations governing the same.

Fi

q=

Note 17: Reconciliation ofthe TotalTax Charce:

649.20



Note 39 i Disclosure in respect of Chanqe in NPA Classification

The RBI vide its Master Directions - "Reserve Bank of lndia (Non-BankinB Financial Company - Scale Based Regulatiofl)
Directions, 2023" dated October 19, 2023 and amended time to time, have changed the NPA classification norms and made
standard for all l.yers of NBFC's. According to Glide Path shared by RBI {as mentioned below), by March 31,2026 all the NBFC's

have to classifo their Loan Assets as NPA if they remain overdue for more than 90 days.

Due to this early adoption oftransition path as mentioned above there is an increase in NPA provision by Rs. 59.63 Lakhs

showing under the head "Provisions" by debiting the correspondinS amount in Profit and Loss Account. The calculation for the
same is given below in the table:

>150 days overdue 8y March 31, 2024
> 120 days overdue By March 31,2025
>90 days overdue

As per the above mentioned Glide Path, The Company was required to classify NPA's on the basis of 150 days overdue during
current financial year 2023-24 but the €ompany have early adopted the new p.ovision for NPA classification to 90 days ovedue
from existing 180 days overdue due to better classification, provisioning and early detection and reporting of NPA's and for the
comfort of bankers and other stakeholders.

{Rs. h lakhs)

Particulars

NPA Provision considerang exceedinB 90 Days Overdue (A) 238.30

NpA Provision considerang exceeding 150 Days Overdue (B) 118.67

Net increase in NPA Provision by charging to P&L Account (A-B) = (i) 59.63

(Rr.ltr Iakhr)

Particulars

lnterest, considering NPA exceeding 90 oays Overdue (A) 154.74

lnterest, considering NPA exceeding 150 0ays Overdue {B) 129.17

Net lncrease/{Decrease) in lnterest income (A-B) = (ii) 25.57

(Rt.l.lakhs)

Particulars Amount
Net lmpact on Profit/(loss) due to change in NPA Classification (i)+ (ii) (8s.20)

A)
sco 30
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basis of Preparatlon of Flnancial Statements
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with lndian AccountinS Standard {lndAS), under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
except for cenain financial instruments which are measured at fairvalues and defined benefit plans which have been measured at actuarialvaluation a5

required by relevant lnd ASs, the p.ovisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013 (\heAcl) {to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and
ExchanSe Board of lndi. (SEgl). The lnd AS are prescribed underSection 133 ofthe Act read with Rule 3 ofthe Companies (lndian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued there after,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revisjon to an existinB

accounting standard requkes a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 0ue to the amendments in Schedule lll applicable to NBFC's, the relevant
changes has been made,

The figures appearinB in the financial statements has been rounded off to the neerest lakhs due to requirement of schedule ll

I Basis of m€asurement

The lnd AS FinancialStatements have been prepared on a going concern bash using historicalcost cohvention and on an accrual method ofaccounting,
except for certain financial assets which have been measured at fair value and defined benefit plans which have been measured at actuarial valuation as

required by relevant lnd A55.

C. Use of Estimates

The preparation offinancialstatements requires estimates and essumptions to be made that affect the.eported amount of assets and liabilities on the
date ofthe financialstatements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses duringthe reponing period. Difference between the actualr€sults
and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known/ materialized.

D Plant and Equipment

F Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equiv.lents in the balan.e sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less, which are subjectto an insignificant risk ofchanges in value in accordance with INDAS 7. Forthe purpose ofthe statement ofcash flows, cash and

cash equivalents consist ofcash and short-term deposits, as deflned above.

f

The items of Plant & equipment are measured at Cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment arestated atcost net of recoverable taxes and includesamounts added on revaluation (ifany),less accumulated

depre€iation and impairment loss, ifany. Allcosts, including financing costs, attributable tothefixed assets are capitalized.
The Company has opted to measure allits property, plant and equipment and intangible assets atthe Previous GAAP (IGAAP)carryin8 amount as its

deem€d cost as on the date oftransition to IND AS 16.

Depreclation

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided to the extent ofdepreciable amount on written down value method (WDv) in the manner prescribed in Schedule

ll to the Companies Act,2013 overtheir remaining useful life on pro-rata basis.

The Company recoBnises lnterest income by applying the effective interest rate (ElR)to the gross carrying amount ofa financlalasset exceptfor
purchased ororiBinated credit-impaired financialassets and other credit-impaired Iinancialassets. For purchased or ori8inated credit-impaired financial

assets, the Company applies the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost ofthe financial asset from initial recognition. For other
credit-impaired financialassets, the Company applies effective interest rate to the amortised cost ofthe financialasset in subsequent reporting periods.

The effective interest rate on a financialasset as the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life ofthe financial

asset to the Bross carryin8 amount of a financial asset. While estihating future cash receipts, factors like expected behaviour and life cycle ofthe
financial asset, probable fluctuation in collateral value etc. are considered which has an impact on the EIR- While calculating the effective interest rate,

the Company includes allfees and points paid or received to and from the borroweB that are an integralpart ofthe etfective interest rate, transaction

costs, and all other premiums or discounts- lnterest income on all trading asrets and financial assets required to be measu.ed at FWPL i5 recognised

using the contractual interest rate as net gain on fair value changes,

SECT
sco

G Revenue Reaognition
Recopnition ot lnterest lncome:

N
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Reco€nition of revenue from sale oleoods or servlces:
Revenue (other than for Financial instruments within the scope of lnd AS 109) i5 measured at an amount that reflects the considerations, to which an

entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf ofthird parties.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step modelas set out in lnd AS 115:

Step 1: ldentify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that areates enforceable rights and
obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: ldentify performance obligations in the contract: A pedormance obligation is a promise in a contractwith a customer to transfer a good or
service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transadion pri€e:The transaction price is the amount ofconsideration to which the Company expeds to be entitled in exchan8e
for transferrinB promised goods or services to a customer, excludin8 amounts collected on behalf ofthird parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contradthat has morc than one performance obligation, the
Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obliSation in an amount that depicts the amount ofconsideration to which the Company
erpects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each perfornance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise rev€nue when (or as) the Company satisfles a performance obligation.

Revenue from contract with customeafor rendering services is reco8nised at a point in timewhen performance obligation is satislied.

Recornltion of Dividend lnaome:

Dividend income (including kom FVOCI investments) is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established. This is established

when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend willflow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured

reliably-

H Employee Benefits

Leave encashment which are shortterm compensated absences arecharged to profit and lossaccountoftheyear in which it i5 due.

Borrowing Corti

A5 per IND AS 23 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construdion of qualifying assets (if any) are capitalized as part of the cost of
such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes lubstantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. Allother borrowing costs are

charged to Profit and Lors account.

The entity mekes contributions to statutory provident funds in accordanae with Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and

Employee State ln.uran.e Act, 1948. Provident Fund and ESI are defined contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the profit and loss

account ofthe year when the contributions to the respective fund is due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the fund

Gratuity Liability as on 31st March 2024 has been provided for on basis of acturia I valuation basis Projected unit credit method in accordanewith IND AS-

19.

A
SECTC
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Provlsion for Current and Deferred Tax

CurrentTaxi Current tax is the amount ofincome taxes payable in respect oftaxable profit fore period. Taxable profit differs from'profit beforc tax'as
repon€d in the Statement of Profit and toss because of items of income or expens€ that are taxable ordeductible in otheryears and items that are
never taxable or deductible in accordance with applicable tax laws,
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or su bsta ntively enaded, by the end of reporting date in lndia where
the Company operates and generates taxable income.

C!rrent income tax relatinS to items recognised outside profit or loss is recogni5ed outside profit or loss i.e., either in other comprehensive income or rn

equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensiv€ income or directly in equity.
ManaBement pe.iodically evaluates positionstaken in the tax returns with re5pect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriat€.

Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilitaes used in the
.omputation of laxable profit and their carrying amounts in the financial statements for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are reco8nised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
l. Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business

combination and, at the time ofthe transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

ll. ln respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences

can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
oeferred tax assets are reco8nised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax crediti and any unused tax losses. Deferred

tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difrerences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses €an be utilised, except:

L When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductable temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction

that is not a business combination and, at the time ofthe transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable proflt or loss.

ll. ln respect of deductible temporary differen€es associated with inveltments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are recoBnised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable fut!re and taxable profit will be

available aga nst which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount ofdeferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sulficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. unrecognised deferred tax assets are reessessed at €ach

r€porting dat€ and are reco8nised to the extent that it has become probable thatfuture taxable profits willallow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tar assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,

based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Oeferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit o. loss ie., eather in other comprehensive income or in equity.

Deferred tax items are recognised in correlatlon to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assetr and defered tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against currenttax liabilities and

the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation autho.ity.

K Provisions, Contingent !iabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present

obligation as a rerult of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent

Liabilities are no! recognized but are disclosed in the notes except for contingnet provision against standard assets

as prescribed by RBI guidelines. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

classification of Current / Non cu.rent Assets

All assets and liabilities are presented as Current or Non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out ln Schedule lll to
The Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition ofassets for processin8 and their realilation, the

Company has assumed iti operating cycle as 12 months forthe purpose of Curent / Non current classification of assets and liabilitie

M [ease5

The Company has complied with INO AS 116 "Leases" applicable from l April 2019. and conside.ed all material lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019

The Company has accounted for its 5hort term leases and low value assets in accordance wlth para 5 ofthe lN0AS, We hav€ considered as short term

lease considering the fact thet Lease can be terminated on short term notice from either side

SF,

t')

c,

L

N--



N Finan.ialAsseb:

Based on the above process, the Company caletorises ilr loan5 inlo three slaSes ar der.ribed below:

For impaired financlalass€ts: Financialassets are classified as StaSe 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more lost

events that have occurred after initialreco8nition with a negative impact on lhe estimated future cash flows ola loan or a portfolio of loans. Th€

Company recognises lifetime ECLfor impaired financial assets.

The company considers a financial instrument as defauLted and therefore Sta8e 3 (Credit lmpaired)for Erpected Credit Loss (ECL) calculations in all

cases when the loan becomes 90 days pan due afterthe due date on its contractual paymehts,

It is relevant to mention that in financialyears preceding linancialyear 2023-24, the compamy h.d estimated SlaSe 3 .sset5 as those which had been

overdue more that 180 days. However in liSht of the voluntary adoption of RBI'S90 days NPA policy as mentioned in not€ no.39 the company had

revised the accounting estimates relating to 5tage 3 assets. Necessary impact on such chanSe in estirnat€ is disclosed in note no, 39,

lnitial.ecotnitlon and mearurcme.t: Al financia assetr are recogflised inltially at fair value when the Company becomes partyto the contractual
provisions of the financialasset. ln cas€ offinancialasreti which are not rerorded at lair va ue throuth profil or lors,lGnsaction costs that are di.e.tly
attributabl€ to lhe acquisition or issue of the financialassets, are adjusted !o the fairvalue on inilialrecoSnition.

5ub!equent measu.ement: The Company claisilier its financial assets into various measurement categories. The classification depends on lhe
contractualterms ofthe financialassels'cash flows and the Company's business modelfor manaSinS financial assets.

Einanciala.sets measured at amortls€d costr A finan.ial asset is measured at amortiled cost if it i5 held within a businers modelwhose objective is to
hold the asset in ord€rto collect contractua c.sh flows and the contractua I terms ofthe FinancialAsset tive ris€ on sp€cified dates to cash llows that
are rolely payment5 of principaland interest on the principa amount outstandinS.

tin.ncialassels measured atlalrvalue throuth olher comprehenilve lncome (FVOCI): Afinancialasret ir measured al FVOC|if it is held within a

business modelwhose objective is achieved by both co lecting conkactualcash flows and selling financialassets and contractual terms offinancialasset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

financialass€tr m€arured atrairvalu€ through profit orloss (WTPLI: A tinancial .5s.1 which is not classitied in eny of the above categories are

lmpairment ot llnancial ess€t5: ln accordance with lnd AS 109, lhe Company uses'Expected Credit Loss' model {ECL), for evaluatin8 impairment of
financialassets otherthan those mearured at Fairvalue through profit or losr.

Erp€cted Credlt Loss (ECL) Policy: txpected Credit Loss,.l each reportinS dale, is measur€d throuSh.loss allowance for a ll nancial assel:
. At an amount equaltothe lifetime expected credat loss€s if the credit riskon thal finencial instrument has incr€ased slSnificantly since Initial

. At an amount equalto l2-month expected credit losses, il the credit riskon a financialinst.um€nt has not increased siEnificantly since initial

tifetime expected credit losses means erp€cted credit losser lhat result from allpossjble default events overtheexpected life ofa financialarJ€t,
l2-month expected credit losses means the portion of Lifetime ECLthat represent the ECll that resultfrom defauli evenls on finan.ialassets thal are
gossible within th€ 12 months afterthe reponinS date.

The Company perfo.ms an assessment, atthe end ofeach reportiq period, ofwhethera financialarseB credit risk has Increased signifiaantly since

initial r€coSnition. When making the asressment, the change in the risk of a default occurrinS over the €rpected lif€ of the financiel instrument is used

instead ofthe chaoge in the amount of o(p€cted credat losses,

For non-impaired ffnanclal ar'ets:. Stage 1is comprised of all non-im paired financialassets which have not erperienc€d a signiflcant increase in creoit

risk since jnitial recotnition. When loars arefirsl re.ognised, the company recotnises en allowanc€ based on lz-month ECt. StaSe l loans in.ludes

those loans where there is no signiticant increase in credit risk obsefted and al5o includes facililies where the credit risk has been lmproved and the loan

har been reclassified from stage 2.ln assessin8 whether credit risk has increased siSnificantly, the Company comparesthe risk ofa default occudng on

the financialasset ar at the reponiry datewith the risk of a default occurringon the finefl€ialasiet a5 atthedate of initial reco8nition.
. Sbge 2 is comprised ofallnon-impaired financialarlets which have erperie..ed a si8nilicant incr€ase in credit risk since initial recoSnition. The

Company re.otnises lifetime tclfor stage 2 financialassels. ln subsequent reporting periods, ifthe credit risk of the financial instrument improves such

thar there is no longer a sitnificant increase in credit rirk since initi.l .ecognition, then entities shall revert to reco8nirins 12 months ECL provision.

The company considers a sitnificant increase in credit risk since initial reco8nition in allcases when the loan becomet more than 30 days past due but

up to 90 days past dueafterthe due dat€ on its contractual payments and the company recognises a ljfe tlme ECI provision on tuch Stat€ 2 assets.

It is rerevant to mention that in financialyears prec€ding financiatyear 2023-24, the compamy had estimated Stage 2 atsett as thote which had been

overdue more that60 days but less than l8O days. However in li8ht of the voluntary adoption of R8l's 90days NPA policy at mentioned in note no.39

the company had revised the accounti^g ertimates .elatinS to stage 2 assets. Necessary impact on such change in eslimate is disclosed in note no, 39,
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As at 31 Mar.h 2024

Stage 1 Stase 2 Stase 3

Gold Loans 2% 1A% taa%
Other Loans-Secured 4vd 10% 100%

Otherloans-Unse.u.ed 4% 10% 100%

Erporure at Defaull (EAD) -The Exposure at Defau t is an est mate of the exposure at a future default date, consid€rins expected changes in the
exposure after the repoding date, includ nE repayments of principaland interest, whether scheduled by contract orotherwise, expected drawdowns on
committed facilllies, and accrued interestfrom missed payments.

Probabilityof Default (to)
Probability of Default (PO) The Probabiity of Default is an enimate ofthe likelihood ofdefau t over a Civen time horizon.The Company uses historical
nformation where avaiable to det€rmlne PO. Conslderingthe different products and schemes, the Company has bifurcated its loan portfolio into

varlous pools. For certain poo s where historlca information is avaiable, the PO is calculated co nside ring fiesh slippage of pastyeals. Forthose pook
where histo.ical information is not availab e, the POl default rates as stated by extehal reporling agencies is considered.

tossGiven Default (LGO)

LGD is the estimated loss that the Company might berr if the borrower defaulis. The Compaoy determines its recovery by analysing the recoverytrends,

collateralvalue alrd expected proceeds from sale of asset.

When estimating ECLS on a collective basis for a group ofsimilar assets, the Company applies the same principles for assessing whetherthere has been

a signlficant incre3se in credit risk since initial recoBnition.

torward looking information -Whiie esUmating the expected c.edlt losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the

economy and market it operates. On a periodlc basis, the Cornpany analyses if there ls any relationship between key economic trends like GDP,

unemp oyment rates, benchmark rates set bythe Reserv€ Eank of hdia, inflation etc. wlth the estimate ofPO, LGD determined bythe Company based

on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be always reflectiv€ of such relationships, temporary

overlays,lfany, are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably

Estimation of Expected Credit Losr lhe mechanics ofthe ECLcalculat ons are outlined belowand the key elements are asfo ows

To mti8ate its credit risks on financialassets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The collateralcomes primarily intheform ofSold
p edged as securlty against the gold loans given. However, the fairvalue of collate rai affects the calculation of EcL. The fairvalue of the same is based

on data published by various external a8encies .nd related market index.

Loans are writren off {either padially or in ful ) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines

rhat rhe borro\der does not have assets or sources of income that could Senerate sufficient cash flows to r€paythe amounts subjected to write_offs

afre r adjusting fo r their collate.al re.overy. Any subseque nt recoveries aga inst such oa ns a re credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss

SFi

Ar at 31 March 2024

Staae 1 StaEe 2 Staee 3

7% 1%

Other Loans-Secured 20% 10% 20%

Other I o.ns-U.se.ured 1,O0% 100% 100%
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